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ALABAMA WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT SYSTEM

Department of Commerce
Workforce Development Division

401 Adams Avenue
Post Office Box 304103 

Montgomery, Alabama 36130-4103

Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) Equal Opportunity and 
Nondiscrimination Requirements

GOVERNOR’S WORKFORCE INNOVATION DIRECTIVE NO. PY2016-05, Change 2

1. Purpose. This directive updates the signatory authorizing this policy to current 
staff as required by the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and 
Training Administration (USDOL/ETA). 

2. Discussion. The Alabama Department of Commerce/Workforce Development 
Division (WDD) during a review of policies found that this directive 
required an update on the signatory in order for it to reflect current 
staff. The USDOL/ETA, the federal funding agency of WIOA, requires 
current staff to approve and sign policies. No changes are being made 
to the policy other than updating the signatory to Tammy Wilkinson, 
Workforce Development Division Director.

3. Action. Local Workforce Development Boards, Alabama Career Center staff, 
and other partner staff should update their records with this change 
to the directive. There were no other changes to the policy that 
require any action.

4. Contact. Questions or comments concerning this directive should be referred 
to Lillian Patterson, EO Officer, Workforce Development Division at 
(334) 242-5861 or lillian.patterson@commerce.alabama.gov.

Tammy Wilkinson, Division Director, WDD   Date
Alabama Department of Commerce
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Records 
Complaint logs containing the name and address of the complainant; the date the complaint is 
filed; the disposition of the complaint and date of disposition will be maintained by the WDD EO 
Officer. 

All records related to complaints and actions taken will be maintained for a period of not less 
than three (3) years from the date of resolution. 

Retaliation and Intimidation 
According to 29 CFR §38.19, a WIOA recipient must not discharge, intimidate, retaliate, 
threaten, coerce, or discriminate against any individual because the individual has 

• filed a complaint alleging a violation of Section 188 of WIA or 29 CFR Part 38; 
• opposed a practice prohibited by the nondiscrimination and equal opportunity provisions 

of WIA or 29 CFR Part 38; 
• furnished information to, or assisted or participated in any manner in an investigation, 

review, hearing, or any other activity related to any of the following: 
administration of the nondiscrimination and equal opportunity provisions of 
WIOA; 
exercise of authority under WIOA nondiscrimination and equal opportunity 
provisions; 
exercise of privilege secured by those provisions; 

• otherwise exercised any rights and privileges under the nondiscrimination and equal 
opportunity provisions of WIOA. 

Sanctions and penalties may be imposed against any recipient that engages in any such 
retaliation or intimidation, or fails to take appropriate steps to prevent such activity. 
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Corrective Actions/Sanctions 

References: 29 CFR § 38 

Summary: EO Methods of Administration must include procedures for obtaining prompt 
corrective action or, as necessary, applying sanctions when noncompliance is found. 

Action Required: 
When the Commerce WOO finds, as a result of a complaint investigation, compliance review, or 
other monitoring activity, that there is reasonable cause to believe that a LWDA or other 
recipient is in violation of 29 CFR Part 38 or WIOA Section 188, the Commerce WOO will notify 
the recipient in writing. The notice will specify the action necessary to achieve voluntary 
compliance within a specific time period. As appropriate, the written notice will include: 

■ Initial findings; 
■ Notice of opportunity to present evidence/documentation to refute findings; 
■ Recommended/required action to end and/or redress the violation(s); 
■ Notice of opportunity to appeal findings through a grievance/complaint process; 
■ Description of relief where discrimination has been clearly identified, including, as 

appropriate, back pay. Make-whole relief may also include other monetary relief, hire 
or reinstatement, retroactive seniority, promotions, and benefits/services denied as a 
result of discrimination; 

■ Description of other remedial, corrective, or affirmative relief deemed necessary by the 
Commerce WOO Division Director to achieve and ensure equal opportunity; 

■ Notice of opportunity to propose a'iternative corrective/ remedial action instead of that 
proposed by the Commerce WOO. Any alternative proposals must be approved by 
the Commerce WOO Division Director. 

Monetary relief will not be paid from federal funds. As necessary, a written conciliation 
agreement describing corrective or remedial actions will be developed by the State-level EO 
Officer and/or the Commerce WOO EO Officer, as appropriate. The agreement will include: 

■ Timeframes for completing corrective/remedial actions; 
■ The individual(s) responsible for implementing the agreement; 
■ Any reporting requirements; and 
■ A description of consequences for breach of the agreement. 

Sanctions: 
When all efforts at voluntary compliance fail, the Commerce WOO may impose sanctions 
against LWDAs or other recipients found to be in violation of nondiscrimination and equal 
opportunity requirements of the WIOA. Sanctions will be applied based on the nature of the 
violation and may include, but are not limited to: 

■ Partial/reduced funding; 
■ Disallowance of costs; 
■ Referral, as appropriate, for litigation under state contract law; 

Other Recipients' Obligations 
LWDAs and other recipients that extend WIOA funds to other recipients must have 
policies/procedures for taking remedial and corrective actions and imposing sanctions when 
they find noncompliance with WIOA nondiscrimination obligations. 
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